

Lifestyle and opportunity @ your doorstep

Planning and Environment Committee MINUTES OF MEETING NO. 8/12

Meeting Date:Tuesday 19 June 2012Location:Committee Room 2, Level 5, Civic Centre, 1 Devlin Street, RydeTime:4.00pm

Councillors Present: Councillors Pickering (Chairperson) O'Donnell and Salvestro-Martin.

Apologies: Councillors Butterworth and Yedelian OAM.

Staff Present: Group Manager – Environment & Planning, Manager Assessment, Business Support Coordinator – Environment & Planning, Team Leader – Building Compliance, Team Leader – Assessment, Senior Town Planner, Senior Development Engineer, Town Planner and Meeting Support Coordinator.

ADJOURNMENT

In accordance with the Code of Meeting Practice, as there was not a quorum at 4.00pm the meeting was adjourned to reconvene as follows:

- 5.10pm (following inspections)
- Tuesday, 19 June 2012
- Committee Room 2, Level 5, Civic Centre, 1 Devlin Street, Ryde

The following Councillors were present:

Councillors Pickering (Chairperson) and O'Donnell.

Apologies had been received from Councillors Butterworth and Yedelian OAM.

MEETING RECONVENED

The Meeting reconvened at 5.10pm on Tuesday, 19 June 2012 in Committee Room 2, Level 5, Civic Centre, 1 Devlin Street, Ryde.

The following Councillors were present:

Councillors Pickering (Chairperson), O'Donnell and Salvestro-Martin.

Apologies had been received from Councillors Butterworth and Yedelian OAM.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest.

1 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - Meeting held on 5 June 2012

RESOLUTION: (Moved by Councillors Salvestro-Martin and O'Donnell)

That the Minutes of the Planning and Environment Committee 7/12, held on Tuesday 5 June 2012, be confirmed.

Record of Voting:

For the Motion: Unanimous

Note: This is now a resolution of Council in accordance with the Committee's delegated powers.

2 252 MORRISON ROAD, PUTNEY. LOT 97 DP 8902. Local Development Application for demolition, construction of new dual occupancy (attached). LDA2012/0069.

<u>Report</u>: The Committee inspected the properties at 252 Morrison Road and 256 Morrison Road, Putney.

<u>Note</u>: Mr Robert Bourne (objector) and Mr Justin Loe (on behalf of the applicant) addressed the Committee in relation to this Item.

<u>Note</u>: Photographs were tabled by Mr Robert Bourne (objector) in relation to this Item and copies are ON FILE.

RECOMMENDATION: (Moved by Councillors O'Donnell and Pickering)

- (a) That Local Development Application No. 2012/69 at No. 252 Morrison Road, Putney being LOT 97 DP 8902 be approved subject to the ATTACHED conditions (Attachment 1).
- (b) That the persons who made submissions be advised of Council's decision.

Record of Voting:

For the Motion: Councillors O'Donnell and Pickering

Against the Motion: Councillor Salvestro-Martin

Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on **26 JUNE 2012** as dissenting votes were recorded.

3 44 DAVID AVENUE, NORTH RYDE. LOT 49 DP 36455. Local Development Application for New two storey dual occupancy. LDA2011/0541.

<u>Report</u>: The Committee inspected the property at 44 David Avenue, North Ryde.

Note: Mr Harry Koo (applicant) addressed the Committee in relation to this Item.



RECOMMENDATION: (Moved by Councillors O'Donnell and Salvestro-Martin)

(a) That Local Development Application No. 2011/541 at No. 44 David Avenue, North Ryde being LOT 49 DP 36455 be approved subject to the following Conditions of Consent:

GENERAL

The following conditions of consent included in this Part identify the requirements, terms and limitations imposed on this development.

1. **Approved Plans/Documents.** Except where otherwise provided in this consent, the development is to be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans (stamped approved by Council) and support documents:

Document Description	Date	Plan No/Reference
Site Plan	August 2010	Sheet 1 of 9
Ground Floor Plan	August 2010	Sheet 2 of 9
First Floor Plan	August 2010	Sheet 3 of 9
Elevations (SW, SE, NE)	August 2010	Sheet 4 of 9
Elevation (NW) and Section A-A	August 2010	Sheet 5 of 9

- 2. **Building Code of Australia.** All building works approved by this consent must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia.
- 3. **BASIX.** Compliance with all commitments listed in BASIX Certificate numbered 386555m_02, dated 18 October 2011.

Landscaping

- 4. The removal and construction management of trees is to be in accordance with the landscape plan prepared by Michael Siu, Revision A, dated 11th August, 2011.
- 5. A tree protection zone is to be established around trees 5 & 6, with no construction activity, site storage or stockpiling to occur within the root zone of the subject trees. Tree protection areas are to be installed prior to the commencement of demolition (under a separate application) and maintained for duration of the construction period.
- 6. Works within the root zone of tree 4 including: the establishment of the building platform, associated paving and stormwater pipes and trenching are to be supervised by a project arborist.

Protection of Adjoining and Public Land

7. **Hours of work.** Building activities (including demolition) may only be carried out between 7.00am and 7.00pm Monday to Friday (other than public holidays) and



between 8.00am and 4.00pm on Saturday. No building activities are to be carried out at any time on a Sunday or a public holiday.

8. Hoardings.

- (a) A hoarding or fence must be erected between the work site and any adjoining public place.
- (b) An awning is to be erected, sufficient to prevent any substance from, or in connection with, the work falling into the public place.
- (c) Any hoarding, fence or awning erected pursuant this consent is to be removed when the work has been completed.
- 9. **Public space.** The public way must not be obstructed by any materials, vehicles, refuse, skips or the like, under any circumstances, without prior approval from Council.

General Engineering Conditions

- 10. **Design and Construction Standards.** All engineering plans and work shall be carried out in accordance with the requirements as outlined within Council's publication *Environmental Standards Development Criteria* and relevant Development Control Plans except as amended by other conditions.
- 11. **Service Alterations.** All mains, services, poles, etc., which require alteration shall be altered at the applicant's expense.
- 12. **Restoration.** Public areas must be maintained in a safe condition at all times. Restoration of disturbed road and footway areas for the purpose of connection to public utilities will be carried out by Council following submission of a permit application and payment of appropriate fees. Repairs of damage to any public stormwater drainage facility will be carried out by Council following receipt of payment.
- 13. **Road Opening Permit.** The applicant shall apply for a road-opening permit where a new pipeline is proposed to be constructed within or across the footpath. Additional road opening permits and fees may be necessary where there are connections to public utility services (e.g. telephone, electricity, sewer, water or gas) are required within the road reserve. No drainage work shall be carried out on the footpath without this permit being paid and a copy kept on the site.

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

A Construction Certificate must be obtained from a Principal Certifying Authority to carry out the relevant building works approved under this consent. All conditions in this Section of the consent must be complied with before a Construction Certificate can be issued.

Council Officers can provide these services and further information can be obtained from Council's Customer Service Centre on 9952 8222.

Unless an alternative approval authority is specified (eg Council or government agency), the Principal Certifying Authority is responsible for determining compliance with the conditions in this Section of the consent.

Details of compliance with the conditions, including plans, supporting documents or other written evidence must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.

14. Section 94. A monetary contribution for the services in Column A and for the amount in Column B shall be made to Council prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate:

Α	В
Community & Cultural Facilities	\$3,991.39
Open Space & Recreation Facilities	\$9,825.97
Civic & Urban Improvements	\$3,341.90
Roads & Traffic Management Facilities	\$455.76
Cycleways	\$284.75
Stormwater Management Facilities	\$904.74
Plan Administration	\$76.78
The total contribution is	\$18,881.29

These are contributions under the provisions of Section 94 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 as specified in Section 94 Development Contributions Plan 2007 (2010 Amendment) adopted by City of Ryde on 16 March 2011.

The above amounts are current at the date of this consent, and are subject to **guarterly** adjustment for inflation on the basis of the contribution rates that are applicable at time of payment. Such adjustment for inflation is by reference to the Consumer Price Index published by the Australian Bureau of Statistics (Catalogue No 5206.0) – and may result in contribution amounts that differ from those shown above.

A copy of the Section 94 Development Contributions Plan may be inspected at the Ryde Planning and Business Centre, 1 Pope Street Ryde (corner Pope and Devlin Streets, within Top Ryde City Shopping Centre) or on Council's website <u>http://www.ryde.nsw.gov.au</u>.

- 15. **Compliance with Australian Standards.** The development is required to be carried out in accordance with all relevant Australian Standards. Details demonstrating compliance with the relevant Australian Standard are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of the **Construction Certificate**.
- 16. **Security deposit.** The Council must be provided with security for the purposes of section 80A(6) of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979* in a sum determined by reference to Council's Management Plan prior to the release of the **Construction Certificate.** (category: dwelling houses with delivery of bricks or concrete or machine excavation).



17. **Fees.** The following fees must be paid to Council in accordance with Council's Management Plan prior to the release of the **Construction Certificate**:

(a) Infrastructure Restoration and Administration Fee(b) Enforcement Levy

- Long Service Levy. Documentary evidence of payment of the Long Service Levy under Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act 1986 is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issuing of the Construction Certificate.
- 19. **Fencing.** Fencing is to be in accordance with Council's Development Control Plan and details of compliance are to be provided in the plans for the **Construction Certificate**.

Engineering Conditions to be complied with Prior To Construction Certificate

- 20. **Boundary Levels.** The levels of the street alignment shall be obtained from Council. These levels shall be incorporated into the design of the internal driveway, carparking areas, landscaping and stormwater drainage plans and must be obtained prior to the issue of the construction certificate.
- 21. **Driveway Grades.** The maximum grade of all internal driveways and vehicular ramps shall be 1 in 4 and in accordance with the relevant section of AS 2890.1. The maximum change of grade permitted is 1 in 8 (12.5%) for summit grade changes and 1 in 6.7 (15%) for sag grade changes. Any transition grades shall have a minimum length of 2.0m. The driveway design is to incorporate Council's issued footpath and gutter crossing levels.
- 22. **Water Tank First Flush.** A first flush mechanism is to be designed and constructed with the water tank system. Details of the first flush system are to e submitted with the construction certificate application.
- 23. **Stormwater Runoff.** Stormwater runoff from all roof impervious areas shall be collected and piped to an absorption drainage system located at the rear of the site via an OSD system and a BASIX required rainwater tank(s) in accordance with BASIX and the City of Ryde, Development Control Plan 2010: Part 8.2; Stormwater Management. *Runoff from driveways and other low lying impervious areas can be collected and piped to directly to the absorption system, by-passing the OSD and rainwater tanks system.*

Additionally, the BASIX required rainwater tank volume shall be increased for each dwelling to 3000 litres as specified by BASIX.

Accordingly, detailed amended engineering plans including certification indicating compliance with this condition are to be submitted with the construction certificate application.

24. Erosion and Sediment Control Plan. An Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (ESCP) shall be prepared by a suitably qualified consultant in accordance with the guidelines set out in the manual *"Managing Urban Stormwater, Soils and Construction"* prepared by the Department of Housing. These devices shall be maintained during the construction works and replaced where considered necessary.

The following details are to be included in drawings accompanying the *Erosion* and *Sediment Control Plan*

- a) Existing and final contours
- b) The location of all earthworks, including roads, areas of cut and fill
- c) Location of all impervious areas
- d) Location and design criteria of erosion and sediment control structures,
- e) Location and description of existing vegetation
- f) Site access point/s and means of limiting material leaving the site
- g) Location of proposed vegetated buffer strips
- h) Location of critical areas (drainage lines, water bodies and unstable slopes)
- i) Location of stockpiles
- j) Means of diversion of uncontaminated upper catchment around disturbed areas
- k) Procedures for maintenance of erosion and sediment controls
- I) Details for any staging of works
- m) Details and procedures for dust control.

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION

Prior to the commencement of any demolition, excavation, or building work the following conditions in this Part of the Consent must be satisfied, and all relevant requirements complied with at all times during the operation of this consent.

25. Site Sign

- (a) A sign must be erected in a prominent position on site, prior to the commencement of construction:
 - (i) showing the name, address and telephone number of the Principal Certifying Authority for the work,
 - (ii) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) or the person responsible for the works and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - (iii) stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited.
- (b) Any such sign must be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.
- 26. **Residential building work insurance.** In the case of residential building work for which the Home Building Act 1989 requires there to be a contract of insurance in force in accordance with Part 6 of that Act, that such a contract of

insurance is in force before any building work authorised to be carried out by the consent commences.

- 27. **Residential building work provision of information.** Residential building work within the meaning of the Home Building Act 1989 must not be carried out unless the PCA has given the Council written notice of the following information:
 - (a) in the case of work for which a principal contractor is required to be appointed:
 - (i) the name and licence number of the principal contractor; and
 - (ii) the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 6 of that Act.
 - (b) in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder:
 - (i) the name of the owner-builder; and
 - (ii) if the owner-builder is required to hold an owner-builder permit under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit.

If any of the above arrangements are changed while the work is in progress so that the information notified under this condition becomes out of date, further work must not be carried out unless the PCA for the development to which the work relates has given the Council written notice of the updated information (if Council is not the PCA).

28. **Safety fencing.** The site must be fenced prior to the commencement of construction, and throughout demolition and/or excavation and must comply with WorkCover New South Wales requirements and be a minimum of 1.8m in height.

Engineering Conditions to be complied with Prior to Commencement of Construction

- 29. Sediment and Erosion Control. The applicant shall install appropriate sediment control devices in accordance with an approved plan **prior** to any earthworks being carried out on the site. These devices shall be maintained during the construction period and replaced where considered necessary. Suitable erosion control management procedures shall be practiced. This condition is imposed in order to protect downstream properties, Council's drainage system and natural watercourses from sediment build-up transferred by stormwater runoff from the site.
- Compliance Certificate. A Compliance Certificate must be obtained confirming that the constructed erosion and sediment control measures comply with the construction plan and the City of Ryde, Development Control Plan 2006: - Part 8.1; Construction Activities.
- 31. Vehicle Footpath Crossings. Concrete footpath crossings shall be constructed at all locations where vehicles cross the footpath, to protect it from damage resulting from the vehicle traffic. The location, design and construction shall conform to the requirements of Council. Crossings are to be constructed



in plain reinforced concrete and finished levels shall conform with property alignment levels issued by Council's Public Works Division. Kerbs shall not be returned to the alignment line. Bridge and pipe crossings will not be permitted.

DURING CONSTRUCTION

Unless otherwise specified, the following conditions in this Part of the consent must be complied with at all times during the construction period. Where applicable, the requirements under previous Parts of the consent must be implemented and maintained at all times during the construction period.

- 32. **Critical stage inspections.** The person having the benefit of this consent is required to notify the Principal Certifying Authority during construction to ensure that the critical stage inspections are undertaken, as required under clause 162A(4) of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000.*
- 33. **Noise and vibration.** The construction of the development and preparation of the site, including operation of vehicles, must be conducted so as to avoid unreasonable noise or vibration and not cause interference to adjoining or nearby occupations.
- 34. **Construction noise.** The L₁₀ noise level measured for a period of not less than 15 minutes while demolition and construction work is in progress must not exceed the background noise level by more than 20 dB(A) at the nearest affected residential premises.
- 35. **Survey of footings/walls.** All footings and walls within 1 metre of a boundary must be set out by a registered surveyor. On commencement of brickwork or wall construction a survey and report must be prepared indicating the position of external walls in relation to the boundaries of the allotment.
- 36. **Sediment/dust control.** No sediment, dust, soil or similar material shall leave the site during construction work.
- 37. **Construction materials.** All materials associated with construction must be retained within the site.

38. Site Facilities

The following facilities must be provided on the site:

- (a) toilet facilities in accordance with WorkCover NSW requirements, at a ratio of one toilet per every 20 employees, and
- (b) a garbage receptacle for food scraps and papers, with a tight fitting lid.

39. Site maintenance

The applicant must ensure that:

- (a) approved sediment and erosion control measures are installed and maintained during the construction period;
- (b) building materials and equipment are stored wholly within the work site unless an approval to store them elsewhere is held;



- (c) the site is clear of waste and debris at the completion of the works.
- 40. **Tree protection no unauthorised removal.** This consent does not authorise the removal of trees unless specifically permitted by a condition of this consent or otherwise necessary as a result of construction works approved by this consent.
- 41. **Tree protection during construction.** Trees that are shown on the approved plans as being retained must be protected against damage during construction.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from a Principal Certifying Authority prior to commencement of occupation of any part of the development, or prior to the commencement of a change of use of a building.

Prior to issue, the Principal Certifying Authority must ensure that all works are completed in compliance with the approved construction certificate plans and all conditions of this Development Consent.

Unless an alternative approval authority is specified (eg Council or government agency), the Principal Certifying Authority is responsible for determining compliance with conditions in this Part of the consent. Details to demonstrate compliance with all conditions, including plans, documentation, or other written evidence must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.

- 42. **BASIX.** The submission of documentary evidence of compliance with all commitments listed in BASIX Certificate numbered 386555m_02, dated 18 October 2011.
- 43. **Landscaping.** All landscaping works approved by condition 1 are to be completed prior to the issue of the final **Occupation Certificate**.
- 44. Sydney Water Section 73. A Section 73 Compliance Certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must be obtained from Sydney Water Corporation. Application must be made through an authorised Water Servicing Co-ordinator. Please refer to the Building Developing and Plumbing section of the web site <u>www.sydneywater.com.au</u> then refer to "Water Servicing Coordinator" under "Developing Your Land" or telephone 13 20 92 for assistance.

Following application a "Notice of Requirements" will advise of water and sewer infrastructure to be built and charges to be paid. Please make early contact with the Co-ordinator, since building of water/sewer infrastructure can be time consuming and may impact on other services and building, driveway or landscape design.

Details demonstrating compliance are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of any Interim/Final Occupation Certificate.

45. Letterboxes and street/house numbering. All letterboxes and house numbering are to be designed and constructed to be accessible from the public way. Council must be contacted in relation to any specific requirements for street numbering.

Engineering Conditions to be complied with Prior to Occupation Certificate

- 46. **Disused Gutter Crossing.** All disused gutter and footpath crossings shall be removed and the kerb and footpath reinstated to the satisfaction of Council.
- 47. **Compliance Certificates Engineering.** Compliance Certificates must be obtained for the following (If Council is appointed the Principal Certifying Authority [PCA] then the appropriate inspection fee is to be paid to Council) and **submitted to the PCA**:
 - Confirming that all vehicular footway and gutter (layback) crossings are constructed in accordance with the construction plan requirements and Ryde City Council's *Environmental Standards Development Criteria* 1999.
 - Confirming that the driveway is constructed in accordance with the construction plan requirements and Ryde City Council's *Environmental Standards Development Criteria 1999.*
 - Confirming that the site drainage system servicing the development complies with the construction plan requirements and the City of Ryde, Development Control Plan 2010: Part 8.2; Stormwater Management
 - Confirming that after completion of all construction work and landscaping, all areas adjacent the site, the site drainage system (including the on-site detention system), and the trunk drainage system immediately downstream of the subject site (next pit), have been cleaned of all sand, silt, old formwork, and other debris.
 - From Council confirming that all external works have been completed to Council's satisfaction.
- 48. **On-Site Stormwater Detention System Marker Plate.** Each on-site detention system basin shall be indicated on the site by fixing a marker plate. This plate is to be of minimum size: 100mm x 75mm and is to be made from non-corrosive metal or 4mm thick laminated plastic. It is to be fixed in a prominent position to the nearest concrete or permanent surface or access grate. The wording on the marker plate is described in the City of Ryde, Development Control Plan 2006: Part 8.2; Stormwater Management. An approved plate may be purchased from Council's Customer Service Centre on presentation of a completed City of Ryde OSD certification form.
- 49. Work-as-Executed Plan. A Work-as-Executed plan signed by a Registered Surveyor clearly showing the surveyor's name and the date, the stormwater drainage, including the on-site stormwater detention system if one has been constructed and finished ground levels is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) and to Ryde City Council if Council is not the nominated PCA. If there are proposed interallotment drainage easements on the subject property, a Certificate from a Registered Surveyor is to be



submitted to the PCA certifying that the subject drainage line/s and pits servicing those lines lie wholly within the proposed easements.

- 50. **Disused Gutter Crossing.** All disused gutter and footpath crossings shall be removed and the kerb and footpath reinstated to the satisfaction of Council.
- 51. **Positive Covenant, OSD.** The creation of a Positive Covenant under Section 88 of the Conveyancing Act 1919, burdening the property with the requirement to maintain the stormwater detention system on the property. The terms of the instruments are to be generally in accordance with the Council's draft terms of Section 88E instrument for Maintenance of Stormwater Detention Systems and to the satisfaction of Council.
- 52. **Positive Covenant, Dispersal.** The creation of a Positive Covenant under Section 88 of the Conveyancing Act 1919, burdening the property with the requirement to maintain the stormwater dispersal system. The terms of the instruments are to be generally in accordance with the Council's draft terms of Section 88E instrument for Maintenance of On- site Dispersal Systems and to the satisfaction of Council.
- 53. **Drainage Construction.** The stormwater drainage on the site is to be constructed in accordance with the construction certificate version of plan 22915 sheet 1 revision A dated 29/6/11 prepared by Auswide Engineering as amended in red.
- (b) That the persons who made submissions be advised of Council's decision.

Record of Voting:

For the Motion: Unanimous

Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on **26 JUNE 2012** as substantive changes were made to the published recommendation.

4 46 DAVID AVENUE, NORTH RYDE. LOT 48 DP 36455. Local Development Application for construction of a two-storey attached dual occupancy. LDA2011/567.

<u>Report</u>: The Committee inspected the property at 46 David Avenue, North Ryde.

Note: Mr Joe O'Connor (applicant) addressed the Committee in relation to this Item.

RECOMMENDATION: (Moved by Councillors Salvestro-Martin and O'Donnell)

(a) That Local Development Application No. 2011/567 at 46 David Avenue, North Ryde, be approved subject to the following Conditions of Consent:

GENERAL

The following conditions of consent included in this Part identify the requirements, terms and limitations imposed on this development.

Approved Plans

- 1. Except where otherwise provided in this consent, the development is to be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans (stamped approved by Council) and support documents:
 - Drawing Nos. 1 to 4 and 6 to 10, Issue 'B' prepared by 'Universal Property Group' dated 24 April 2012 and colour schedule, and
 - Arborcultural Assessment prepared by 'Horticultural Management Sevices' dated 22 November 2011, except as amended by the conditions hereunder.

Prior to the issue of a **Construction Certificate**, the following amendments shall be made:

- (a) The only tree permitted to be removed under this consent is the existing Black Bean tree (*Castanospermum australe*) located along the proposed rear boundary. The proposed screen planting along the front boundary of the site shall be limited to a maximum height of 900mm and the Landscape Plan shall be amended accordingly.
- (b) The Landscape Plan shall be amended to replace the Black Bean with a suitable advanced native having a minimum pot size of 75litres at the time of planting.
- 2. **Building Code of Australia** All building works are required to be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Building Code of Australia.
- 3. **BASIX** Compliance with all commitments listed in BASIX Certificate No. 398422M_03 dated 25 April 2012.
- Drainage Construction The stormwater drainage on the site shall be constructed in accordance with the Construction Certificate version of Plan No. 1108181d issue 'C' dated 23 April 2012 prepared by Rammy Associates Pty Ltd.

Protection of Adjoining and Public Land

- Hours of work Building activities (including demolition) may only be carried out between 7.00am and 7.00pm Monday to Friday (other than public holidays) and between 8.00am and 4.00pm on Saturday. No building activities are to be carried out at any time on a Sunday or a public holiday.
- 6. **Hoardings** A hoarding or fence must be erected between the work site and any adjoining public place.

Any hoarding or fence erected pursuant this consent is to be removed when the work has been completed

- 7. **Development to be within site boundaries** The development must be constructed wholly within the boundaries of the premises. No portion of the proposed structure shall encroach onto the adjoining properties. Gates must be installed so they do not open onto any footpath.
- Public space The public way must not be obstructed by any materials, vehicles, refuse, skips or the like, under any circumstances, without prior approval from Council.

Works on Public Road

- Public Utilities Compliance with the requirements (including financial costs) of any relevant utility provider (e.g. Energy Australia, Sydney Water, Telstra, RTA, Council etc) in relation to any connections, works, repairs, relocation, replacements and/or adjustments to public infrastructure or services affected by the development.
- Roads Act Any works performed in, on, or over a public road pursuant to this consent must be carried out in accordance with this consent and with the Road Opening Permit issued by Council as required under section 139 of the Roads Act 1993.

Engineering Conditions

- 11. **Design and Construction Standards** All engineering plans and work shall be carried out in accordance with the requirements as outlined within Council's publication *Environmental Standards Development Criteria 1999 and City of Ryde Development Control Plan 2010 Section 8* except as amended by other conditions.
- 12. **Service Alterations** All mains, services, poles, etc., which require alteration shall be altered at the applicant's expense.
- 13. Restoration Public areas must be maintained in a safe condition at all times. Restoration of disturbed road and footway areas for the purpose of connection to public utilities will be carried out by Council following submission of a permit application and payment of appropriate fees. Repairs of damage to any public stormwater drainage facility will be carried out by Council following receipt of payment. Restoration of any disused gutter crossings will be carried out by Council following receipt of the relevant payment.
- 14. **Road Opening Permit** The applicant shall apply for a road-opening permit where a new pipeline is proposed to be constructed within or across the footpath. Additional road opening permits and fees may be necessary where there are connections to public utility services (e.g. telephone, electricity, sewer, water or gas) are required within the road reserve. No drainage work shall be carried out on the footpath without this permit being paid and a copy kept on the site.

DEMOLITION CONDITIONS

The following conditions are imposed to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and Australian Standards, and to ensure that the amenity of the neighbourhood is protected.

A Construction Certificate is not required for Demolition.

- 15. **Asbestos** Where asbestos is present during demolition work, the work must be carried out in accordance with the guidelines for asbestos work published by WorkCover New South Wales.
- 16. Asbestos disposal All asbestos wastes must be disposed of at a landfill facility licensed by the New South Wales Environmental Protection Authority to receive that waste. Copies of the disposal dockets must be retained by the person performing the work for at least 3 years and be submitted to Council on request.
- 17. **Imported fill type** All imported fill must be Virgin Excavated Natural Material as defined in the *Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997*.

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

A Construction Certificate must be obtained from a Principal Certifying Authority to carry out the relevant building works approved under this consent. All conditions in this Section of the consent must be complied with before a Construction Certificate can be issued.

Council Officers can provide these services and further information can be obtained from Council's Customer Service Centre on 9952 8222.

Unless an alternative approval authority is specified (eg. Council or government agency), the Principal Certifying Authority is responsible for determining compliance with the conditions in this Section of the consent.

Details of compliance with the conditions, including plans, supporting documents or other written evidence must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.

 Section 94 – A monetary contribution for the services in Column A and for the amount in Column B shall be made to Council prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate:

Α	В
Community & Cultural Facilities	\$3,991.39
Open Space & Recreation	\$9.825.97
Civic & Urban Improvements	\$3,341.90
Roads & Traffic Management Facilities	\$455.76
Cycleways	\$284.75
Stormwater Management Facilities	\$904.74
Plan Administration	\$76.78
The total contribution is	\$18,881.29



These are contributions under the provisions of Section 94 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 as specified in Section 94 Development Contributions Plan 2007 (2010 Amendment) adopted by City of Ryde on 16 March 2011.

The above amounts are current at the date of this consent, and are subject to **<u>guarterly</u>** adjustment for inflation on the basis of the contribution rates that are applicable at time of payment. Such adjustment for inflation is by reference to the Consumer Price Index published by the Australian Bureau of Statistics (Catalogue No 5206.0) – and may result in contribution amounts that differ from those shown above.

A copy of the Section 94 Development Contributions Plan may be inspected at the Ryde Planning and Business Centre, 1 Pope Street Ryde (corner Pope and Devlin Streets, within Top Ryde City Shopping Centre) or on Council's website <u>http://www.ryde.nsw.gov.au</u>.

- Compliance with Australian Standards The development is required to be carried out in accordance with all relevant Australian Standards. Details demonstrating compliance with the relevant Australian Standard are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 20. **Structural certification** The applicant must engage a qualified practising structural engineer to provide structural certification in accordance with relevant BCA requirements.
- 21. **Security deposit** The Council must be provided with security for the purposes of section 80A(6) of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979* in a sum determined by reference to Council's Management Plan (category: dwelling houses with delivery of bricks or concrete or machine excavation).
- 22. **Fees** The following fees must be paid to Council in accordance with Council's Management Plan:
 - (a) Infrastructure Restoration and Administration Fee
 - (b) Enforcement Levy
- 23. Long Service Levy Documentary evidence of payment of the Long Service Levy under Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act 1986 is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issuing of the Construction Certificate.
- 24. **Fencing.** Fencing is to be in accordance with Council's Development Control Plan and details of compliance are to be provided in the plans for the **Construction Certificate**.

25. Sydney Water – quick check – The approved plans must be submitted to a Sydney Water Quick Check agent or Customer Centre to determine whether the development will affect any Sydney Water assets, sewer and water mains, stormwater drains and/or easements, and if further requirements need to be met. Plans will be appropriately stamped.

Please refer to the website <u>www.sydneywater.com.au</u> for:

- Quick Check agents details see Building, Developing and Plumbing then Quick Check; and
- Guidelines for Building Over/Adjacent to Sydney Water assets see Building, Development and Plumbing then Building and Renovating.

Or telephone 13 20 92.

Engineering Conditions Prior to Construction Certificate

- 26. **Boundary Levels** The levels of the street alignment shall be obtained from Council. These levels shall be incorporated into the design of the internal driveway, carparking areas, landscaping and stormwater drainage plans and must be obtained prior to the issue of the **Construction Certificate**.
- 27. Driveway Grades The maximum grade of all internal driveways and vehicular ramps shall be 1 in 4 and in accordance with the relevant section of AS 2890.1. The maximum change of grade permitted is 1 in 8 (12.5%) for summit grade changes and 1 in 6.7 (15%) for sag grade changes. Any transition grades shall have a minimum length of 2.0m. The driveway design is to incorporate Council's issued footpath and gutter crossing levels where they are required as a condition of consent.
- 28. **Sight Distance** To facilitate safe sight distances, all proposed fencing and vegetation forward of the building alignment to McGregor Street shall be limited in height to a maximum of 900mm. Plans detailing compliance with this condition shall be submitted with the **Construction Certificate**.
- On-Site Stormwater Detention Stormwater runoff from all impervious areas shall be collected and piped by gravity flow to a suitable on-site detention system in accordance with City of Ryde, Development Control Plan 2010: - Part 8.2 Stormwater Management.

Engineering plans, including certification indicating compliance with this condition are to be submitted with the **Construction Certificate** application.

- 30. **On-Site Stormwater Detention Tank** All access grates to the on site stormwater detention tank are to be hinged and fitted with a locking bolt. Any tank greater than 1.2m in depth must be fitted with step irons.
- 31. **Water Tank First Flush.** A first flush mechanism is to be designed and constructed with the water tank system. Details of the first flush system are to be submitted with the construction certificate application.



32. Erosion and Sediment Control Plan – An Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (ESCP) shall be prepared by a suitably qualified consultant in accordance with the guidelines set out in the manual *"Managing Urban Stormwater, Soils and Construction"* prepared by Landcom. These devices shall be maintained during the construction works and replaced where considered necessary.

The following details are to be included in drawings accompanying the *Erosion* and *Sediment Control Plan*

- (a) Existing and final contours
- (b) The location of all earthworks, including roads, areas of cut and fill
- (c) Location of all impervious areas
- (d) Location and design criteria of erosion and sediment control structures,
- (e) Location and description of existing vegetation
- (f) Site access point/s and means of limiting material leaving the site
- (g) Location of proposed vegetated buffer strips
- (h) Location of critical areas (drainage lines, water bodies and unstable slopes)
- (i) Location of stockpiles
- (j) Means of diversion of uncontaminated upper catchment around disturbed areas
- (k) Procedures for maintenance of erosion and sediment controls
- (I) Details for any staging of works
- (m) Details and procedures for dust control.

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION

Prior to the commencement of any demolition, excavation, or building work the following conditions in this Part of the Consent must be satisfied, and all relevant requirements complied with at all times during the operation of this consent.

33. Site Sign

- (a) A sign must be erected in a prominent position on site:
 - (i) showing the name, address and telephone number of the Principal Certifying Authority for the work,
 - (ii) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) or the person responsible for the works and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - (iii) stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited.
- (b) Any such sign must be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

- 34. **Residential building work, insurance** In the case of residential building work for which the *Home Building Act 1989* requires there to be a contract of insurance in force in accordance with Part 6 of that Act, that such a contract of insurance is in force before any building work authorised to be carried out by the consent commences.
- 35. **Residential building work, provision of information** Residential building work within the meaning of the *Home Building Act 1989* must not be carried out unless the PCA has given the Council written notice of the following information:
 - (a) in the case of work for which a principal contractor is required to be appointed:
 - (i) the name and licence number of the principal contractor; and
 - (ii) the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 6 of that Act.
 - (b) in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder:
 - (i) the name of the owner-builder; and
 - (ii) if the owner-builder is required to hold an owner-builder permit under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit.

If any of the above arrangements are changed while the work is in progress so that the information notified under this condition becomes out of date, further work must not be carried out unless the PCA for the development to which the work relates has given the Council written notice of the updated information (if Council is not the PCA).

36. **Safety Fencing** – The site must be fenced throughout demolition and/or excavation and must comply with WorkCover New South Wales requirements and be a minimum of 1.8m in height.

Engineering Conditions Prior to Commencement of Construction

37. Sediment and Erosion Control – The applicant shall install appropriate sediment control devices in accordance with an approved plan **prior** to any earthworks being carried out on the site. These devices shall be maintained during the construction period and replaced where considered necessary. Suitable erosion control management procedures shall be practiced.

Note: This condition is imposed in order to protect downstream properties, Council's drainage system and natural watercourses from sediment build-up transferred by stormwater runoff from the site.

- 38. **Compliance Certificate.** A Compliance Certificate should be obtained confirming that the constructed erosion and sediment control measures comply with the construction plan and City of Ryde, Development Control Plan 2010: Part 8.1; Construction Activities
- 39. Vehicle Footpath Crossings. Concrete footpath crossings shall be constructed at all locations where vehicles cross the footpath, to protect it from damage resulting from the vehicle traffic. The location, design and construction



shall conform to the requirements of Council. Crossings are to be constructed in plain reinforced concrete and finished levels shall conform with property alignment levels issued by Council's Public Works Division. Kerbs shall not be returned to the alignment line. Bridge and pipe crossings will not be permitted.

DURING CONSTRUCTION

Unless otherwise specified, the following conditions in this Part of the consent must be complied with at all times during the construction period. Where applicable, the requirements under previous Parts of the consent must be implemented and maintained at all times during the construction period.

- 40. **Critical stage inspections** The person having the benefit of this consent is required to notify the Principal Certifying Authority during construction to ensure that the critical stage inspections are undertaken, as required under clause 162A(4) of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000.*
- Noise and vibration The construction of the development and preparation of the site, including operation of vehicles, must be conducted so as to avoid unreasonable noise or vibration and not cause interference to adjoining or nearby occupations.
- 42. **Construction noise.** The L₁₀ noise level measured for a period of not less than 15 minutes while demolition and construction work is in progress must not exceed the background noise level by more than 20 dB(A) at the nearest affected residential premises.
- 43. **Survey of footings and walls** All footings and walls within 1 metre of a boundary must be set out by a registered surveyor. On commencement of brickwork or wall construction a survey and report must be prepared indicating the position of external walls in relation to the boundaries of the allotment.
- 44. **Sediment/dust control** No sediment, dust, soil or similar material shall leave the site during construction work.
- 45. **Construction materials** All materials associated with construction must be retained within the site.
- 46. Site maintenance The applicant must ensure that:
 - (a) approved sediment and erosion control measures are installed and maintained during the construction period;
 - (b) building materials and equivalent are stored wholly within the work site unless an approval to store them elsewhere is held; and,
 - (c) the site is clear of waste and debris at the completion of the works.
- 47. Work within public road At all times when work is being undertaken within a public road, adequate precautions shall be taken to warn, instruct and guide road users safely around the work site. Traffic control devices shall satisfy the minimum standards outlined in Australian Standard No. AS1742.3-1996 "Traffic

Control Devices for Work on Roads".

- 48. **Drop-edge beams** Perimeters of slabs are not to be visible and are to have face brickwork from the natural ground level.
- 49. **Plumbing and drainage work** All plumbing and drainage work must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of Sydney Water Corporation.
- 50. Only unpolluted water is to be discharged to Council's stormwater drainage system.

PRIOR TO OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from a Principal Certifying Authority prior to commencement of occupation of any part of the development, or prior to the commencement of a change of use of a building.

Prior to issue, the Principal Certifying Authority must ensure that all works are completed in compliance with the approved construction certificate plans and all conditions of this Development Consent.

Unless an alternative approval authority is specified (eg Council or government agency), the Principal Certifying Authority is responsible for determining compliance with conditions in this Part of the consent. Details to demonstrate compliance with all conditions, including plans, documentation, or other written evidence must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.

- 51. **BASIX** The submission of documentary evidence of compliance with all commitments listed in BASIX Certificate No. 398422M_03 dated 25 April 2012.
- 52. **Landscaping** All landscaping works approved by condition 1 are to be completed prior to the issue of the final **Occupation Certificate**.

Engineering Conditions Prior to Occupation Certificate

- 53. **Disused Gutter Crossing** All disused gutter and footpath crossings shall be removed and the kerb and footpath reinstated to the satisfaction of Council.
- 54. **Compliance Certificates, Engineering** Compliance Certificates should be obtained for the following (if Council is appointed the Principal Certifying Authority [PCA] then the appropriate inspection fee is to be paid to Council) and **submitted to the PCA**:
 - Confirming that all vehicular footway and gutter (layback) crossings are constructed in accordance with the construction plan requirements and *Ryde City Council's Environmental Standards Development Criteria 1999, Section 4.*
 - Confirming that the driveway and the footpath paving works are constructed in accordance with the construction plan requirements and *Ryde Development Control Plan 2010: Part 8.3 Driveways.*



- Confirming that the site drainage system (including the on-site detention storage system) servicing the development complies with the construction plan requirements and *Ryde Development Control Plan 2010: Part 8.2 Stormwater Management*.
- Confirming that after completion of all construction work and landscaping, all areas adjacent the site, the site drainage system (including the on-site detention system), and the trunk drainage system immediately downstream of the subject site (next pit), have been cleaned of all sand, silt, old formwork, and other debris.
- 55. Work-as-Executed Plan A Work-as-Executed plan signed by a Registered Surveyor clearly showing the surveyor's name and the date, the stormwater drainage, including the on-site stormwater detention system if one has been constructed and finished ground levels is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) and to Ryde City Council if Council is not the nominated PCA. If there are proposed interallotment drainage easements on the subject property, a Certificate from a Registered Surveyor is to be submitted to the PCA certifying that the subject drainage line/s and pits servicing those lines lie wholly within the proposed easements.
- 56. On-Site Stormwater Detention System, Marker Plate Each on-site detention system basin shall be indicated on the site by fixing a marker plate. This plate is to be of minimum size: 100mm x 75mm and is to be made from non-corrosive metal or 4mm thick laminated plastic. It is to be fixed in a prominent position to the nearest concrete or permanent surface or access grate. The wording on the marker plate is described in City of Ryde, Development Control Plan 2010: Part 8.2; Stormwater Management. An approved plate may be purchased from Council's Customer Service Centre on presentation of a completed City of Ryde OSD certification form.
- 57. **Positive Covenant, OSD** The creation of a Positive Covenant under Section 88 of the Conveyancing Act 1919, burdening the property with the requirement to maintain the stormwater detention system on the property. The terms of the instruments are to be generally in accordance with the Council's draft terms of Section 88E instrument for Maintenance of Stormwater Detention Systems and to the satisfaction of Council.
- 58. **Positive Covenant, Dispersal** The creation of a Positive Covenant under Section 88 of the Conveyancing Act 1919, burdening the property with the requirement to maintain the stormwater dispersal system. The terms of the instruments are to be generally in accordance with the Council's draft terms of Section 88E instrument for Maintenance of On- site Dispersal Systems and to the satisfaction of Council.
- (b) That the persons who made submissions be advised of Council's decision.



Record of Voting:

For the Motion: Unanimous

Note: This matter will be dealt with at the Council Meeting to be held on **26 JUNE 2012** as substantive changes were made to the published recommendation.

The meeting closed at 5.45pm.

CONFIRMED THIS 17TH DAY OF JULY 2012.

Chairperson